
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REOfON 4 
SAM NUNN 

ATLANTA fF.DERAL CE."'lTER 
6J FORSYTH STREET 

ATI.A!'ol1A GEORGIA 30303-8960 

MAR 01 Z011 


CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIl'IREQUESTED 

Mr. Lenny F. Abbott 
Chief Executive Officer 
Protective Coatings Group, LLC 
PO Box 61912 
Jacksonville, Florida 32236 

Re: Protco;tive Coatings Group, LLC 

Docket No,: PIFRA·04-20l1·3006(b) 


Dear Mr. Abbott: 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in 
the above-rcfercoced matter, The original CAPO has been t1led with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk and served on the parties as directed in Section 22,6 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 
40 C.F,R. Part 22, 

As stated in Section V of the CAFO. the assessed penalty ofSI ,500 18 due within 30 days 
from the effective date, Plea.~ ensure that the face ofyour cashier's Of certified check includes 
the name of the company and the docket number of this case. 

Penalty payment questions shoutd be directed to Me Bryson Lehman either by telephone 
at (513) 487-2123 or by v"nuen correspondence to his attention at the U.S. Environmental 
l'rotection Agency, Cincinnati Accounting Operations address identiHed in the CAFO, Should 
you have any questions about this matter or your compliance status in the future. please call me 
at (404) 562-8979 or Ms. Molly Miller at (404) 562-9684, 

Internet Adctre$$ ~UAL}. http://www.9p3.gtIV 

RecyQI~ • Printoowom \ii:lg!Itabi& Db OaSQd I~<s on GecyC/IC PIl(Jef (MiT!f!um 30% Ptn;;1oo!'lSIlmer) 


http://www.9p3.gtIV


Also enclosed is a copy of a document entitled "Notice of Securities and Exchange 
Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings," This document 
puts you on notice of your potential duty to disdose to the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) any environmental enforcement actions taken by EPA. 

Sincerely, 

Jeaneanne M. Gettle 
Chief 
Pesticide~ and Toxic 
Substances Branch 

Enclosures 

cc; Craig Bryant 
Flvrida Dept of Agriculture 
and Consumer Services 



U:-IITED STATES r -. 

ENVIRONMI<:NTAI~ PROTECTION AGENCY 
ATLANTA, GEORGIA 

L ' 

(" 	 -~ ,In the Matter of: 	 ) 
) I:: , 


Protective Coatings Group, LLC ) Docket l'io.: FIFRA-04-2011-3006(i>Y, 

) ~ 


Respondent, ) 

--) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORnER 

J. Nature: of the Action 

1. 	 Tnis is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 14{a) of the Federallnsccticide, 

Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. § 1361(a) (FIFRA), and pursuant 

to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil 

Penalties and dle Revocationfrermination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated 

Rules), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director ofthe Air, Pes.ticides, and Toxit:~ 

Management Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 (EPA). 

Respondent is Protective Coatings Group, LLC. 

2, 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 

40 c.r.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegatiuns described 

herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking ()f any evidence or 

testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, 

and in accordance with 40 CF.R. § 22. 13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 

(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 



U. Prdiminarr Statements 

3. 	 The authority to take netion under Section 14(a) ofFlFRA., 7 U's.c. § 1361(a), is vested 

in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator ofEPA has delegated this authorjty 

wider F1FRA to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 5-14, dated May 11, 1994. 

4. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(c)(4) the following individual is authorized to receive 

service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Molly Miller 
Pesticides Sectlon 
1:.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 
(404) 562-9684. 

5. 	 Respondent is Protective Coatings Group, LLC. a Florida limited liability company. 

located at 5587 Commonwealth Avenue, JacksonviHe, 'Florida. 

6. 	 Respondent isa "person" as defined by Section 2(s) ofFlFRA. 7 U.S.c. § 136(.), and as 

mlch is subject to FlFRA and rhe regulations promulgated thereunder. 

III. Specific Alltaatiotts 

7. 	 On or about September 4. 2007, an authoriled representative ofthe EPA conducted an 

inspection at Respondent's lacility iocated at 5587 Commonwealth Avenue. Jat:ksonviUe, 

Florida. 

8. 	 During the September 4,2007, inspection. the representative noted tht' following 

products were being sold or distributed by Rcspondem: FortiCcI and MycoDyne. 

9. 	 On or about July 23, 2010, an authori7,cd representative of the EPA conducted an 

inspection and review of Respondent's VI<'ebsite: http://4pcg.cmn. 
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10. 	 During the JuJy 23. 20 I 0, inspecliotl, the representative noted the following products 

were o1fered for sale or distribulIon on Respondent's website: Fortied, MycoDync and 

ProCleall 101. 

It, 	 At the time of distribution or sale, the pestlcides F uniCel; Myconyne and ProClea.n 101 

were accompanied with labeJiug describing their ability to prevent or remove mold, 

mildew and/or fungal gro\\1h. 

12. 	 'The te111:1 "to distribute or sell" as defined by Section 2(gg) ofFlFRA. 7 V.S.c. 

§ 136(gg). includes to distribute, sell, offer lor sale, hold for distribution, hold for sale, 

hold for shipment, ship, deliver for shipment. or release for shipment. 

13. 	 "Pesticide" is dcfi""d in Scction 2(u)(1) ofFlFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36(u). as any substance 

or m~xtufe of substances intended fUf preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any 

pest. 

14. 	 "Labeling" is defined in Section 2(p)(2) of FTFRA, 7 U.s.c. § 136(p)(2) to include all 

labels and nil other written, printed, or graphic matter accompanying the pe<;ticide at any 

time. 

15, 	 "Pest" is defined in Section 2(t) of FfFRA. 7 U.s.C. § 136(1) as any insect, rodent, 

nematode, fungus, weed, or any other form uftcrrestrial or aquatic plant or anjmal life or 

virus, ba{.1:cria, or oilier micro-organism (except viruses, bacteria, ur otber micro­

organisms on or in living mID! or other living animals) which the Administrator declares 

to be a pest under Section 25(c)( 1). 

J6. 	 At the time of lhe September 4, 2007 inspection, FortiCel and :vtycoDyne were not 

rebr1stercu as pesticides with EPA. 
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17. Althe time of the July 23, 201 0, inspection, FuniCe!. MycoDyne and ProClean 101 were 

not registered as pesticides 'with EPA. 

18. 	 Pursuant to Section 12(a)(1I(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.s.C § 13~i(al(1 )(A), it is unlawtUllor 

any person 10 distribute or sell to any person any pesticide that is not registered und~r 

Sec 'lion 3 ofFlFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 13&.. 

19. 	 Respondent Violated Section 12(aJ(l I(AI ofHFRA, 7 U.S.c. § 136j(a)(l )(A), by selling 

and distributing the unregistered pesticide FortiCcI on at lea<:;t two occasions; the 

unregistered pesticide MycoDyne on at least two occasions; and the unregistered 

pesticide ProClean 101 on at least one occasion. Respondent is therefore su~iect to the 

assessment ofcivil penalties under Section 14 of FlFRA, 7 C.S.C. § 136/. 

20. 	 Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136/(a), in conjunction with [he Debt Collection 

Improvement Act of 1996, authorizes the a<;sessment ofa civiJ penalty. 

21. 	 Section 14(0)(4) or FIJ'RA, 7 U.S.c. §I J6/(a)(4), requires EPA to consider the 

appropriateness of the assessed penalty to the size ofb~iness of the Respondent, the 

effect on Re!>'Pondcnt's ability to continue in busine~s, and the gravity of the viOlation. 

22. 	 After consideration of the factors set forth in Sedion 14(a)(4) of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. 

§ 136/(a)(4), EPA proposes to assess 0 total civil penalty of ONE TIIOl.:SAND FIVE 

I1UNDRED DOLLARS (SI,5OO) against the Respondent for the .hove-dcscribed 

violations. Civil penalties under Section 14(.) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1361(0), may be 

assessed by Administrative Order. 

23. 	 For the purposes of this CAFO, R(~spondent admits the .iurisdictional allegations set forth 

above and neither admits nor denies the factual allegations. 
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24. 	 Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegation:; contained herein and its right 

to appeal the proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

25. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment oftlle penalty proposed by EPA and agrct:s to pay 

the civil penalty as set forth in this CAFO. 

26. 	 Respondent certifies that at; of the date of its execution of this CAFO. it is in compliance 

with all relevant requirements ofFIFRA, 

27. 	 Compliance with this CAFO shall reMlve the allegations of the violations (;ontainoo 

herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United 

States. Other than as expressed herein. neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to 

hong an enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any fWeral or state 

statute, regu'ation 01' permit. to initiate an action for imminent and substantia1 

endangenncnt, or to pursue criminal enforcement. 

28. 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle thh; matter by their execution of this CAFO. 

The parties agree that the settJement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent \vith the applicable requirements ofFIFRA, 

V. I<~inal Order 

2Y< 	 Respondent is assessed a civil penalty ofONE TI-IOUSAND FIVE IIUNDREIl 

DOLLARS ($1,500) which shall be paid within 30 days from the elTective date ofIhi, 

30. 	 Respondent shall remit lhe pcnaJty by either a cashier's or certified check made payabk 

to the ''Treasurer, United States ofAmerica," and shall send the check via {IS, maJl to 

the following address: 
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u.s. Envirorunental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincirmati Finance Center 
1',0, Rox 979077 
St. Loui •. MO 63197·9000, 

The check sball referenC(: on its face the name of the 
Respondent and the Docket Number (lfthe CAFO. 

31. 	 At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in ace-ordance with this C AFO, to the following 

~rsons at the following add~s: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S, EPA· Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303·8960; 

Molly Miller 
Pesticides Section 
U.S, EPA· Region 4 
61 Forsyth Stred 
Atlanta, Goorgia 30303·8960; and 

Saundi Wilson 
Office of Envirorum:ntal 
U.S. EPA· Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960. 

32. 	 For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall no! he entitled, 

and agrees not to attempt. to claim atieduction for any civil penalty payment made 

purSllilnt to 1his CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such paymenl~ shall 

constitute a violation ofthis CAFO. 

33. 	 Pun;uant to 31 U.S.C § 37l7. EPA is entitled to assess intert:Ht and penalties on debts 

owed to the United States and a charge to cover the oost of proccScslng and handling a 

delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the dute 

of entry oftbis CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge wHi also 
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be assessed to cover the administrative costs, both direct and indirect. of overdue debts" 

In addition, a late payment penalty charge shaH be applied on any principal amount not 

paid within 90 days of the due date, 

34. 	 Complainant and Responuent shaH bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

35. 	 'Ibis CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

36. 	 The undersigned representative of the party tu this CAFO certifies that he or sbe is fully 

authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally binds that party to 

this CAPO. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTEIIiTIONAI,LY LEFT BLANK 
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__ 

VI. Effective Date 

37. 	 The effective date of this CAFO shall he the date on which lbe CAFO is fIled with the 

Regionalllearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Respondent! Protective Coatings Group, LLC 
Docket No.: FIFRA-04-2011-3006(b) 

___ (Signature) Date: 1/Zd.Z0 1/._ 

Name: t.eNNY~""'L~·J<:r___ ___ (Type<! or Printed) 

Title: 	s::£.~__ (Typed OJ Printed) 

Complainant: U.S. Envirunmf'otal Protection Agency 

fly: ~:,.L1;pcm~w,.(l'Ll-- Date: _2..J.-/z~Z--J/,-,I~t_ 
Beverly H. Banister, Director 

Air, Pesticides and T oxics 


Management Division 


.J4:' 
APPROVED Al'iD SO ORDERED this ~. day of J1fo.r?6.=__...~ _l0tl_. 

_k~6. ~__ 
SUlS<ffi B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTU'ICA'fE OF SER\1CE 

1hereby certify that on the date set out below, I filed the original and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a tme and correct copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order In the Matter of Protective Coatings Group, LLC. 

Docket Number: FIFRA~04-2011-3006(b), '" the addres,",., listed below. 

Lenny F. Abbott 
Chief Execut.ive Officer 
Protective COll\lngs Group, LLC 
P.O. Box 61912 
Jack,onville. Florida 32236 

Ylolly Yliller 
Pesticides Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan 
As....ociate Regional Counsel 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA Region 4 

(via Conified Ylail, Return Receipt Requested) 

(via EPA's internal mail) 

(via EPA's; internal mail) 

61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 

Date:~! -I ( 
Patricia A Builock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth St.. SW 
Attanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-9Sl1 

~:'::=~.--~~-~~ 
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EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 
= 

ro 11£ COMPLEIl!1) II)' THE ORIGINATING OFFK:E; 
,AttadI a oopJ' oftbe 8tW onIer HIli h'aasmiftalletter to Dtft~) 

t1dsfonn"as~hy:S_a_u_n_d_i_W_i_l_S0_n___---;;:;::::;-_________ ... _..,~;-'_/)c;';.,0,,!_ 
tName) (Date) 

i.UW'____~R=e~gl~o=n__ __~~~-~-----------------~(404)562.'5044=,_O;_R_C~._O_EA 
(0ftIce) (T"'__l'rYJ 

""""'"J_alOflIKIC__ _____ 

D 

D USAOCOIJ...ECl'S FMO cot..LEC1'S PAYMENT 

SF Judidlil Orda'JCoaa:al DKreII! D 
DOJ COLLECTS 

D 
D 
D ..._
~_.c..._ 

D 


0.';; 

Tho IDoIS....-_CoaIroI_.,___ f)ak,________ 

11,.. .... ..,....__-_ _"UwFi___ at, .... 

I. DdIt Tnd::iarc 0ft'Iar 1 
[.tII ,.,Ii:"'.," StdiDa ,.

t 

Dqtu... of J.... RM lWJ 
P'()' ..7tll.1JajMIIia FraIdiaI Stadoa 
W~D.c. ..... 


